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DUE TO THE SENSITIVE NATURE OF THIS COMPLAINT, THE PLAINTIFF 
IS REFERRED TO AS JOHN DOE.  THE DEFENDANTS HAVE BEEN 
NOTIFIED OF THE IDENTITY OF THE PLAINTIFF.

COMPLAINT IN CIVIL ACTION
AND NOW COMES the plaintiff, John Doe I, by and through his attorneys, Alan H. Perer, Esquire, and Swensen Perer and Kontos, and set forth the cause of action whereof the following is a statement:

THE PARTIES
Plaintiff:
1. Plaintiff John Doe XI is an individual who currently resides in Clarksburg, West Virginia.  He was born April 19, 1988, and was a minor child approximately fifteen (15) years old when he was first sexually abused by Father Charles McCallister, a priest in the Roman Catholic Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston.

Defendants:
2. Defendant Roman Catholic Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston is a non-profit organization, with its principal offices located at 1300 Byron Street, Wheeling, Ohio County, West Virginia (hereinafter Diocese, collectively with Bishop Defendants, referred to as Diocesan Defendants), doing business as an organized religion, including but not limited to the ownership, management and operation of parishes and Catholic schools within the state of West Virginia.

3. Defendant Bishop Michael J. Bransfield (hereinafter (Bransfield(), is an individual residing in Wheeling, Ohio County, West Virginia; and is the current Bishop or leader of the Diocese, having undertaken the position February 22, 2005. 

4. Defendant Bishop Bernard William Schmitt (hereinafter (Schmitt() is an individual residing in West Virginia, and served as the Bishop of the Diocese, with his tenure lasting from 1989 to 2004.  
5. Defendant Barbara Jane Arbogast is the Executrix of the Estate of Charles E. McCallister, who died on October 13, 2007.  She was appointed by the Clerk of the County Commissioner of Randolph County, West Virginia, pursuant to the Last Will and Testament of Charles E. McCallister.  Charles E. McCallister was a priest of the Defendant Roman Catholic Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston.

6. It is believed and therefore averred that all times material herein the Bishop of the Diocese, by virtue of his office, is empowered to supervise and control all Diocesan priests, employees and other agents; all Diocesan properties and entities, including parishes and schools, and various other Diocesan entities located in the state of West Virginia.  
FACTS
7. The Plaintiff and his family were involved in their local parish church in the Diocese.  The Plaintiff had been taught to trust the parish priests and clergy, including Father McCallister who abused him, as well as other leaders of the Diocese, including its bishops. 

8. At all times material herein, Diocesan Defendants explicitly and implicitly represented to the Plaintiff that the Diocese, its bishops and each of its priests were benevolent and trustworthy stewards who would only act in the best interest of the Plaintiff.

9. At all times material herein, the Plaintiff believed that it would be sinful or wrong to make any kind of accusation against a priest or a bishop; and that priests and bishops could not and would not engage in conduct considered evil or wrong or illegal.

10. At all times material herein, the Plaintiff entrusted his well being to the Diocesan Defendants who had a corresponding obligation to be solicitous for, as well as protective of, the Plaintiff in the exercise of their position of superiority and purported authority.

11. At all times material herein, the Diocesan Defendants invited and encouraged the Plaintiff to accept each priest of the Diocese purported to be in good standing, including McCallister, as individuals who were worthy of and who had the responsibility for the physical and spiritual safety of the Plaintiff, thereby inducing the Plaintiff to entrust himself to the company and care of McCallister
NATURE OF SPECIAL RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES

AND THE PREDATOR PRIEST
12. The Diocese by and Schmitt and Bransfield, at all times material herein, was responsible for the creation and staffing of the parishes, parish churches, and parish and Diocesan schools within the Diocese.

13. At all times material, Schmitt and Bransfield were solely and ultimately responsible for assigning, transferring and/or suspending all parish clergy to and from parish churches and other entities, such as hospitals and schools within the Diocese.  Said priests and other parish clergy served at the Bishops( pleasure.

14. Diocesan Defendants approved the transfers of all Diocese clergy into and out of the Diocese.

15. The Diocesan Defendants solicited funds for its support from the parishioners of its parishes through parish (assessments( and direct appeals.  The Diocesan Defendants also provided funds to the parishes, as they deemed necessary and appointed the trustees of the parishes and approved parish and school budgets.

16. Through control of and interaction with the parish churches and their direct knowledge of the daily functioning of the various religious and recreation programs operating in each parish in the Diocese, the Diocesan Defendants were aware that among their parishioners there were a significant number of young children and adolescents who, because of their very status as minors, were vulnerable to and trusting of parish priests.

17. The Diocesan Defendants were aware that these minor parishioners through their participation in parish churches, parish schools, Diocesan secondary schools and Diocesan sponsored and developed educational and/or recreational programs, had intimate, frequent, and often times private contact with parish clergy and priests assigned by the Diocesan Defendants.  Diocesan Defendants were also aware that as part of a priest(s duties and in furtherance of cultivating a trusting relationship with children, that priests visited the children(s homes to meet with the children and their parents.  Diocesan Defendants also knew and approved of the fact that minor parishioners were present at parish rectories (priests/clergy residences) for a variety of purposes including volunteer work and other church-related activities.  
18. The Diocesan Defendants by and through their priest McCallister were acting (in loco parentis( at all times when the minor child was in the company of said priest, except those periods when the minor(s parents were present.  As such, the Diocesan Defendants were acting (in loco parentis( at all times that McCallister was grooming the minor to be sexually abused and actually sexually abusing him. 

19. At all times material herein, a confidential relationship existed between the Diocesan Defendants, the priests of the Diocese and its parishioners, including the Plaintiff.

20. The Diocesan Defendants, along with  McCallister , and other unnamed parish clergy repeatedly instilled in the Plaintiff as they did in all of their parishioners the belief that priests are figures of authority who should be relied upon to protect the well being of children in the parishes and schools of the Diocese.  Plaintiff, like all the children in the parish, were taught to obey priests and to rely on and trust them without doubt or question on issues affecting their physical and moral well being.

21. At all times material herein, the Plaintiff was unaware that at or before the time he was abused by the respective priest that:

a. The Diocese or the Bishops knew the sexual abuse of children by priests was a longstanding problem in the church;

b. That it was the policy of the Diocese and bishops not to report priests who sexually abused children to law enforcement agencies.  Instead, said defendants engaged in the covert policy and practice to conceal the problem of sexual abuse;

c. That the policy of the Diocese and the bishops was to ignore the abuse or reassign the offending priest to a new assignment and not report said offending priest to lawful authorities.  When sexually abusive priests were reassigned to new parishes, the parishioners were not informed of the dangers posed by the sexually abusive priests; and

d.
That the Diocese had received at least one prior report of inappropriate 
conduct by McCallister  with a young male, and yet the Diocese had not conducted 
any significant investigation to determine the extent of the conduct.

FACTS IDENTIFYING THE NATURE

OF THE PLAINTIFF(S ABUSE 
22. Plaintiff was raised in a devout Roman Catholic family and regularly attended mass, served as an altar boy and youth lector at the Immaculate Conception Church in Clarksburg, West Virginia, and was also part of the church youth group.

23. Father Charles E. McCallister (hereinafter “McCallister”), although not assigned to a church, often performed mass and other duties at the Immaculate Conception Church, and his office was adjacent to the meeting room of the church’s youth group.  

24. Plaintiff was sexually abused by McCallister beginning when plaintiff was approximately fifteen (15) years old.  Said abuse began at the Immaculate Conception Church and frequently occurred there. 
25. The abuse included mutual masturbation, and McCallister urged plaintiff to penetrate him anally and attempted to have the plaintiff perform oral sex on him.
26. The abuse took place in the church sacristy and offices and in other locations, including out of town locations.

27. The abuse occurred repeatedly for a period of approximately three (3) years and comprised at least 50 separate sessions of sexual abuse.
FACTS IDENTIFYING THE RELATIONSHIP
OF FATHER McCALLISTER AND THE DIOCESE

28. On information and belief, prior to 2003, McCallister had a history of sexual abuse of minors while serving as a priest in the Wheeling-Charleston Diocese.  
29. On information and belief, prior to 2003, the Diocese knew or should have known McCallister was a sexual predator and knew or should have known McCallister had sexually abused minors.
30. On information and belief, there were additional incidents of abuse by McCallister and because of his history of abuse the Diocese did not assign McCallister to a church at least from 1991 to 2007; however, the Diocese allowed McCallister to perform as a priest at, inter alia, the Immaculate Conception Church in Clarksburg.
31. The Diocese had received at least one report of inappropriate conduct by the priest with a young male and yet failed to conduct an investigation to determine the extent of the conduct.

32. Performing as a priest at the Immaculate Conception church, McCallister had access to children and he sexually abused minors.

33. Despite their duty to do so, the Diocese never took action to prevent the abuse, nor did they inform the parishioners of the Immaculate Conception Church of McCallister’s history of sexual abuse of minors.  As a result, McCallister abused plaintiff repeatedly at the Immaculate Conception Church.  
34. Beginning in 2003, plaintiff was sexually abused by MCallister when McCallister was present at the Immaculate Conception Church.  

35. Plaintiff’s family did not know McCallister was abusing plaintiff until in or about Spring 2006, when plaintiff told his parents about the abuse.
36. In or about September 2006, plaintiff began college.  Throughout the fall semester, plaintiff suffered from depression.  In the spring 2007 semester, despite therapy, plaintiff’s condition deteriorated, and in March of 2007, he was emergently hospitalized for his psychological problems stemming from the sexual abuse by McCallister.  Plaintiff also attempted suicide on more than one occasion because of the psychological effects of the abuse by McCallister.
37. In or about the time of the hospitalization, plaintiff’s physician reported the abuse on the Wheeling Hot Line for Abuse and in turn the abuse was reported to the Wheeling-Charleston Diocese, the West Virginia State Police and the Harrison County District Attorney.

38. In March of 2007, as a result of his psychological problems stemming from the abuse, plaintiff was forced to withdraw from college.

39. Although the Diocese was or should have been aware of McCallister’s history of sexually abusing children, the Diocesan defendants nevertheless made deliberate decisions:



a.
Not to notify the police;



b.
Not to notify Children and Youth Services or other civil authorities;



c.
Not to warn parishioners at the Immaculate Conception Church that 



McCallister posed a serious risk to children; 



d.
Not to conduct an investigation to determine the identity of other children 



sexually abused; and


e.
Not to suspend McCallister prior to his abuse of the plaintiff.

40. A priest in the Diocese repeatedly contacted plaintiff, urging him not to press criminal charges against McCallister.

41. Based on the investigation by the Harrison County Sheriff’s Department, the prosecution offered a plea agreement to McCallister allowing him to plead guilty to two misdemeanor counts of third degree sexual abuse with limited information to the public.  

42. McCallister through counsel initially agreed to the plea agreement but later declined the agreement.

43. The deputy then issued felony warrants to be issued on October 12, 2007, charging various crimes of sexual abuse of the plaintiff.

44. McCallister was to appear to receive the warrants on October 15, 2007.

45. On October 13, 2007, McCallister was found dead at his home.  No autopsy was requested.  

46. On information and belief, Diocesan Defendants knew and/or had constructive knowledge of the sexual abuse of minors by a number of Diocesan priests, including McCallister, and that such abusive behavior was a longstanding problem within the Diocese, having received actual notice of such abuse. 
47. On information and belief, the Diocesan Defendants knew that offending priests, including McCallister, gained access to children as a direct result of his status and responsibilities as clerics of the Diocese.  
48. On information and belief, Diocesan Defendants knew or should have known of the sexual abuse of minors by McCallister and the resultant dire effects of this abuse on the child victims.
49. In furtherance of their own interest, including the continued financial support of parishioners, the primary concern of Diocesan Defendants has been the protection of the reputation of its priests and therefore its Diocese, including McCallister.

50. Diocesan Defendants have concealed the danger the predator clerics presented by misrepresenting them as priests in good standing in the following ways:

a.
Enabling their continued unrestricted access to minors;

b.
Assigning them and/or allowing them to reside and serve at parishes and/or schools within the Diocese;

c.
Allowing them free and unrestricted use of premises of the Diocese for otherwise unchaperoned activities with minors;

d.
Assigning them to duties specifically involving minors;

e.
Announcing to the public or allowing offending clerics to give the public less disagreeable or less serious reasons for leaving an assignment or position, other than sexual misconduct with children;

f.
Promoting offending clerics within the church hierarchy;

g.
Privately assuring concerned parents that offending cleric(s problems would  be taken care of;

h.
Providing and/or subsidizing education, maintenance and/or living arrangements for offending clerics after removal from their assignments or upon their suspension; 

i.
Continuously listing offending clerics in official directories and/or publications by phrases such as absent on leave, advanced studies, special assignment or retired after removal or transfer from their assignment or suspension for sexual misconduct with children and/or allowing offending clerics to honorably retire; 

j.
Failing to adequately investigate complaints of inappropriate relationships with young men when received; and

k.
Failing to instill in employees of the Diocese a policy of reporting and follow up on any suspicious or in inappropriate behavior of priests.

51. The effect of these practices by Diocesan Defendants was such to create the misperception in the mind of the Plaintiff and the Plaintiff(s family that Plaintiff was safe with priests in general and with Father McCallister in particular, and if there was conduct about which Plaintiff or Plaintiff(s family was concerned it was an isolated instance of spurious conduct when in fact the Plaintiff was a victim of a known, ongoing and preventable hazard that the Diocesan Defendants had created and/or allowed to continue.

52. Diocesan Defendants implicitly and explicitly represented to the Plaintiff and Plaintiff(s family that they could appropriately rely upon the Diocesan Defendants to act to protect both their interests and the interests of potential future victims or other children in disciplining the offending cleric, including Father McCallister for clear misconduct, relying upon the Diocesan Defendants( representations that a priest was in good standing and that the Diocesan Defendants would always exercise a fiduciary duty toward them.

53. Diocesan Defendants responded, if at all, to incidents or complaints of sexual abuse of minors by priests by (counseling( the perpetrator and transferring him geographically, with the intention of protecting the reputation or image of the Diocesan Defendants and their priests.

54. On discovery of an offending cleric(s misconduct, Diocesan Defendants concealed said knowledge, failed to report the misconduct to authorities, and prevailed upon others not to report said misconduct to law enforcement

55. Diocesan Defendants aided and abetted the concealment of criminal conduct by failing and refusing to report to criminal or civil authorities allegations of sexual abuse of children by priests of the Diocese.

56. When confronted, Diocesan Defendants falsely assured parishioners, law enforcement, state or court officials and/or others, expressly and/or impliedly, that they would responsibly deal with offending clerics; falsely promising reviews/investigations and falsely promising to take preventive measures against further harm.

57. Diocesan Defendants ignored and/or failed to properly investigate complaints against priests involving sexual abuse of children. 

58. Diocesan Defendants suppressed instances where priests admitted or acknowledged sexual abuse of children.
59. Diocesan Defendants failed to maintain records of offenders and complaints; covered up and kept complaints secret.
60. Diocesan Defendants transferred and/or reassigned offending clerics to new parishes, thereby exposing a new population of children to unreasonable risk of injury.
61. Despite active and/or constructive knowledge of prior misconduct and/or after secretly securing evaluation/treatment of the offending cleric at church operated treatment facilities (while misrepresenting the true reason for his absence to parishioners), Diocesan Defendants allowed the offending cleric to return to various assignments, temporary as well as permanent.
62. Despite actual and/or constructive knowledge of prior misconduct, Diocesan Defendants conferred further privilege, prestige and power to the cleric by way of promotion and/or transfer to new parishes as pastors.
63. Diocesan Defendants maintained offending clerics at parishes or in other assignments, with the benefit of their priestly authority; and falsely held out the cleric as a safe, competent and moral priest, fit and/or suitable to serve and/or administer to parishioners with whom they would reasonably come into contact in the course and scope of their employment, thereby allowing priests to deceive parents into believing a child molester, disguised in priestly garb, was no different than any other priest.  

64. Diocesan Defendants maintained secret files regarding abusive priests and made secret payments to victims in exchange for their silence.

65. Diocesan Defendants did not attempt to ascertain if there were other victims of a particular offending priest once they received information that he had in fact sexually abused a child.

66. At all times material herein, the Diocesan Defendants have exhibited an ongoing pattern of conduct involving secrecy and concealment of sexual involvement by Diocese priests, including Father McCallister.
67. Diocesan Defendants have employed a closed secret system of internal reporting of sexual misconduct by their servants, including the use of (code words( thereby limiting knowledge to themselves, and subsequently to their own closed psychiatric and treatment systems.

DAMAGES
68. As a direct and proximate result of the Diocesan Defendants( and McCallister’s negligent and/or intentional conduct as described herein, Plaintiff sustained the following physical and emotional injuries and damages:

1. Severe mental anguish and trauma, necessitating psychiatric and medical care and treatment in the past, present and/or undoubtedly in the future;

1. Untold humiliation and embarrassment;

1. Extensive and permanent damage to his sexual and psychological development;

1. Loss of faith in God and mistrust in organized religion;

1. Shock to the system and emotional distress on learning that he had been betrayed by the Diocesan Defendants that claimed they had been looking out for the Plaintiff(s best interest;

1. Shock to the system and emotional distress on learning that Diocesan Defendants had not only failed to protect him but had actually placed him in harm(s way by allowing a known pedophile to act as his teacher and priest/minister;

1. Aggravation and/or exacerbation of the pre-existing mental anguish and trauma experienced at the hands of his abuser, on learning of the Diocesan Defendants( role in protecting its predator priests at the expense of the Plaintiff/child(s interests;

1. Post traumatic stress and depression, which resulted in his inability to timely complete his educational studies.

1. Psychiatric and medical expenses, past, present and/or future; 

1. A loss of earning capacity; and

1. Headaches, nausea and loss of sleep upon learning of the active involvement of the Diocese Defendants in protecting and thereby encouraging known child molesters within their employ.

COUNT ONE

JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

STATUTORY VIOLATION, NEGLIGENCE PER SE
69. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.
70. At all times material, the Diocesan Defendants and their priests, agents and/or employees, in the course of their practice and profession, regularly came into contact with children as a result of their supervision and control over all Diocesan schools and parishes, including the Immaculate Conception Parish.  As such, the Diocesan Defendants were, at all times relevant herein, legally obligated under (The Child Protective Services Law( to report suspected child abuse to the Child Protective Services Unit of the Department of Health and Human Resources in the appropriate county.  See W.Va. Code 49-6A-2.  

71. The Diocesan Defendants failed to timely and properly report to authorities any allegations of McCallister’s sexual abuse of a minor received by them, despite the fact that the Diocese had received at least one report suggestive of abuse with a prior young male victim.  
72. As a direct and proximate result of the Diocesan Defendants( failure to report to authorities allegations of sexual abuse by Father McCallister, Plaintiff was victimized by Father McCallister and sustained the injuries and damages as enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Roman Catholic Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bransfield and Bishop Schmitt (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is demanded.

COUNT TWO

JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

COMMON LAW DUTY OF REASONABLE CARE
73. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein, by this reference thereto.
74. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield were obligated, as leaders and supervisors of the Diocese and its schools and parishes, to take reasonable care to investigate, to supervise, or to warn minor parishioners and/or their families of the risk of harm occasioned by their interaction with Father McCallister which they knew or should have known was sexually abusing minors.
75. Diocesan Defendants failed to give primary assistance to victims.
76. Diocesan Defendants, through their agents and representatives, held themselves out as having control over Father McCallister, and having the ability to protect minors from inappropriate contact and/or child sexual abuse at the hands of Diocese priests. 

77. The Diocesan Defendants engaged in a pattern of inaction or silence, when they had an obligation to speak.
78. Diocesan Defendants breached their duty of reasonable care as herein above alleged, inter alia, as follows:

a.
Ignoring reports of sexual abuse of minors by their priests;

b.
Reassigning offending priests to new assignments within or outside the Diocese;

c.
Failing to report offending priests to law enforcement and/or the Child Protective Services unit of the Department of Health and Human Resources;

d.
Failing to warn new parishes and parishioners, including the Plaintiff, of the danger posed by sexually abusive priests; 

e.
Failing to remove or suspend offending clerics, including Father McCallister from their duties as priests, or to otherwise act to stop them from pursuing sexual assaults on children, including the Plaintiff despite receiving complaints and sufficient information that the priests were engaged in illegal and improper activities with children;
f.
Failing to adequately investigate prior reports suggestive of and consistent with abuse of young men; and

g.
Failing to instill in Diocese employees a procedure to immediately report any and all suspicious and inappropriate conduct by priests.
79. As a direct and proximate result of the Diocesan Defendants( failure to exercise reasonable care, Plaintiff was victimized by Father McCallister and sustained the injuries and damages enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Michael Bransfield and Bishop Bernard Schmitt (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT THREE

JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY
80. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.
81. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese were entrusted with the well-being, care and safety of the Plaintiff and all Diocesan children as a result of their status as parishioners and students at Diocese parishes and schools.  Under their fiduciary relationship, Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese assumed a duty to act in the best interest of the Plaintiff.
82. Plaintiff considered and believed Diocesan Defendants were acting as agents or representatives of God.  As a parishioner, student and/or altar boy, Plaintiff was taught to put his trust and faith in members of the Diocese and was encouraged to do so by the Diocesan Defendants.  As a result, there was a justifiable trust on Plaintiff’s part and a resulting superiority and influence on the part of the Diocesan Defendants.
83. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese placed Plaintiff in the care of  Father  McCallister, respectively, for the purpose of, inter alia, providing Plaintiff with religious instruction, training, spiritual guidance and counseling.  As such, there existed a fiduciary relationship of trust, confidence, and reliance between Plaintiff and Bishop Schmitt, Bishop Bransfield and the Diocese.
84. The Diocesan Defendants were in a specialized or superior position to receive, and did receive, specific information regarding misconduct by their servants/priests, that was of critical importance to the well-being or care or treatment of innocent child victims, including the Plaintiff - knowledge not otherwise available despite the most diligent investigation.  Diocesan Defendants exercised their special or superior position to assume control of said knowledge and any response thereto.
85. The Plaintiff on the other hand was in a subordinate position of weakness, vulnerability, inequality and lacking in such knowledge.  Further, the ability of the Plaintiff or his family to monitor the use or misuse of the power and authority of the Diocesan Defendants in action upon or responding to such knowledge was compromised, inhibited or restricted by the Diocesan Defendants.
86. The Diocesan Defendants had a secular fiduciary relationship with the Plaintiff grounded upon the duty of good faith, fair dealing and the duty to act with the highest degree of trust and confidence.  This fiduciary relationship includes the duty to warn and to disclose and to protect parish and/or Diocese children from sexual abuse and exploitation by their priests, whom these defendants promote as being (celibate( and (chaste( representatives of God on earth.
87. Plaintiff and Plaintiff(s family had the right to rely and did rely on the representations of the Diocesan Defendants that their priests, including  Father  McCallister , were priests in (good standing( and that the Diocesan Defendants would not tolerate criminal misconduct that represented a known threat to children by their priests.
88. It is alleged that the Diocesan Defendants breached this duty through their inaction, manipulation, intimidation, evasion, intended deception, undue influence, duress or otherwise as more fully described and set forth herein, resulting in injury to the welfare and well being of the Plaintiff. 

89. As a direct result of the Diocesan Defendants( breach of its fiduciary duty to the Plaintiffs, they suffered injuries and damages as enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Michael Bransfield and Bishop Bernard Schmitt (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT FOUR

JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

FAILURE TO PROVIDE A SAFE AND SECURE ENVIRONMENT
90. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this referenced there.
91. Bishop Bransfield, Bishop Schmitt, and the Diocese, and their Diocese clergy acted in the capacity of (in loco parentis( to Plaintiff at all times that Plaintiff  worked in the rectory and church, engaged in parish sponsored recreation programs and other parish and Diocesan sponsored programs.
92. Bishop Bransfield, Bishop Schmitt, and the Diocese, by virtue of their position and authority over parishes, parish schools and secondary schools, had an obligation to provide a reasonably safe and secure environment within their parish churches, clergy residences and/or schools for the minor Plaintiff.
93. Diocesan Defendants failed to provide such an environment and failed to exercise the degree of care that a reasonably prudent person would have exercised under similar circumstances.
94. By sanctioning and encouraging the entrustment of Plaintiff(s physical, mental and emotional safety to Father McCallister, the Diocese actually and/or impliedly accepted, assumed and ratified the duty (in loco parentis( to protect Plaintiff, as he was unable to protect himself.
95. Bishops Schmitt, Bransfield and the Diocese breached their duty of (in loco parentis(.
96. As a direct result of the breach of Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese(s duty, Plaintiff has suffered injuries and damages enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Michael Bransfield and Bishop Bernard Schmitt (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded. 

COUNT FIVE

JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

NEGLIGENT SUPERVISION
97. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated by this reference thereto.
98. As set forth herein above, Plaintiff was molested by Father McCallister on property owned and controlled by the Diocesan Defendants.
99. As set forth herein above, Diocesan Defendants were or should have been on notice of Father McCallister(s pedophiliac behavior and sexually abusive behavior towards minor parishioners.
100. As set forth herein above, Diocesan Defendants were responsible for maintaining control over and/or overseeing its assignment of Father McCallister at Diocese owned and operated parishes and elementary schools.
101. Despite the knowledge of Bishop Bransfield, Bishop Schmitt and the Diocese that Father McCallister had a propensity to sexually molest children, they failed to exercise reasonable care in controlling Father McCallister so as to prevent foreseeable injuries to the Plaintiff.
102. Bishops Schmitt, Bransfield and the Diocese, by their actions, undertook a course of conduct that increased the risk that Father McCallister would abuse the Plaintiff and/or other minor parishioners/students. 
103. Bishop Bransfield, Bishop Schmitt and the Diocese(s failure to properly supervise its agent, Father McCallister, and/or terminate them resulted in injuries to the Plaintiff as more fully set forth hereinbefore.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Michael Bransfield and Bishop Bernard Schmitt (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT SIX
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

SUPPLYING FALSE INFORMATION/NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATIONS
104. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein, by this reference thereto.
105. As set forth herein above, Diocesan Defendants in the course of their activities in running the Diocese parishes and schools, supplied false information designed to deceive parishioners and families who were members of Diocese parishes and schools, including Plaintiff, by holding out Father McCallister and other Diocese priests about whom they had knowledge of allegations of sexual abuse, as safe, competent and moral priests, fit and/or suitable to serve and/or minister to parishioners and students with whom they would reasonably come into contact in the course and scope of their employment.
106. As a result of the Diocesan Defendants( false and deceptive information, Plaintiff and/or his family justifiably relied upon Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese(s representations with respect to Father McCallister in continuing their association with the Diocese, thereby being placed at risk to be molested by said priests.
107. The negligent representations of the Diocesan Defendants were a substantial factor in causing the Plaintiff(s injuries, which injuries are enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bernard Schmitt and Bishop Michael Bransfield (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT SEVEN
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

FAILURE TO PROTECT AGAINST FORESEEABLE RISKS
108. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.
109. As set forth herein above, the Diocesan Defendants were on notice that the presence of Father McCallister in a Diocese parish was a foreseeable risk of harm to all minor parishioners/students with whom said priest would come into contact. 

110. The very foreseeability of another such molestation of minor parishioners/students by Father McCallister makes Bishop Bransfield and Bishop Schmitt and the Diocese(s failure to act to protect against the risk, negligence.
111. The negligence of Bishop Bransfield and Bishop Schmitt and the Diocese in failing to protect the Plaintiff against the foreseeable risk of molestation at the hands of Father McCallister was a substantial factor in causing his harm.
112. As a result of the negligence of Bishop Bransfield and Bishop Schmitt and the Diocese, the Plaintiff suffered injuries as enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT EIGHT
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

DUTY TO WARN OF UNREASONABLE RISK OF HARM
113. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.
114. At all times material herein, Father McCallister was within the control of the Diocesan Defendants and acting as their agents or employees.
115. At all times material herein, Plaintiff believed that Father McCallister was a priest in good standing within the Diocese.
116. At all times material herein, Bishops Bransfield and Schmitt and the Diocese knew or should have known that Father McCallister had a propensity for molesting minor parishioners, and that his position would create situations where he would sexually harm other minor parishioners, including Plaintiff.
117. Despite its knowledge of the unreasonable risk of harm to minor Diocese parishioners, Bishops Bransfield and Schmitt and the Diocese failed to warn the Plaintiff or his family of Father McCallister(s propensities.
118. In addition to failing to warn, as herein above alleged, Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese went to great lengths to protect Father McCallister and conceal his known pedophiliac behavior from parishioners and/or families of minors resulting in a foreseeable risk of harm.
119. This failure to warn and/or concealment of a known danger by Bishops Bransfield and Schmitt and the Diocese was a substantial factor in causing the Plaintiff(s harm. 

120. Due to the negligence of Bishops Bransfield and Schmitt and the Diocese, in their failure to warn Plaintiff and/or other children similarly situated, Plaintiff sustained the injuries enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bernard Schmitt and Bishop Michael Bransfield (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT NINE
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

NEGLIGENT SUPERVISION OR USE OF IMPROPER PERSONS AS AGENTS
121. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.
122. At all times material herein, Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese were conducting activities in furtherance of its organization, through its agents, including Father McCallister.  
123. At all times material herein, Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese knew of Father  McCallister(s propensity to molest parishioners, thereby involving a risk of harm to its minor parishioners, yet retained them in said positions.
124. At all times material herein, despite the knowledge of Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese with respect to the propensities of Father McCallister, they failed to supervise said priest or prevent him from tortiously injuring the Plaintiff.
125. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese(s negligence in the use and employment of  Father McCallister was a substantial factor in causing Plaintiff(s harm.
126. Due to the negligence of Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese, Plaintiff sustained injuries as enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bernard Schmitt and Bishop Michael Bransfield (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT TEN
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

USE OF INCOMPETENT PERSONS
127. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.
128. At all times material herein, Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese, knew that Father McCallister was likely to conduct himself with children in such a manner so to create an unreasonable risk of harm to them.
129. At all times material herein, Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese had the ability to control Father McCallister to the extent they were responsible for their parish assignments and their access to parish children.
130. Despite the knowledge of Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese of Father McCallister(s dangerous propensities with children, they permitted Father McCallister to misuse his position as a priest so as to create an unreasonable risk of harm to minor parishioners, including Plaintiff.
131. As a result of the negligence of Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese, Plaintiff sustained injuries enumerated herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bernard Schmitt and Bishop Michael Bransfield (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT ELEVEN
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

INTENTIONAL FAILURE TO SUPERVISE
132. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this referenced thereto.
133. Prior to the dates of sexual molestation perpetrated by Father McCallister upon the Plaintiff and thereafter, said priest had been known or should have been known to Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese to have been a pedophile or other sexual offender, with the habit of making sexual advances and engaging in unnatural sexual acts with children, under the pretext of his duties as a Diocese priest, and utilizing his position as a priest to overcome such child(s reluctance and fears.  

134. After learning through complaints from other priests and/or others, including other victims, that Father McCallister utilized his position as a priest to lure and persuade children to commit sexual acts with them, Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese failed to remove or suspend Father McCallister from his duties as priest or otherwise to stop him from pursuing his sexual assaults on children, including the Plaintiff.
135. The actions of Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese as alleged in the preceding Paragraphs constituted intentional misconduct with the harm which befell  the Plaintiff as a directly foreseeable consequence.
136. As a direct result of said tortious conduct, the Plaintiff has suffered the injuries and damages described herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT TWELVE
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

INTENTIONAL FAILURE TO WARN
137. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein, by this reference thereto.
138. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese owed a duty of care to all persons, including the Plaintiff, who were likely to come within the influence of  Father McCallister in his role of Diocese priest, to insure that said priest did not abuse his authority as a priest to injure others by sexual assault and abuse.
139. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese intentionally breached their duty of care, and intentionally disregarded the rights and safety of the Plaintiff, by failing to warn or otherwise protect the Plaintiff from  Father  McCallister , who was acting under their supervision, and whom they knew or should have known was likely to sexually assault and abuse persons such as the Plaintiff in the manner described herein, and by failing to insure that said priest would not have unsupervised access to people such as the Plaintiff.
140. As a direct and proximate result, Plaintiff has suffered and will continue to suffer the injuries described herein.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bernard Schmitt and Bishop Michael Bransfield (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT THIRTEEN
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

141. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

142. Upon learning of the negligent conduct of the Diocesan Defendants as set forth above, Plaintiff experienced emotional distress and suffered damages as set forth in Paragraph 68 above.


WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages for negligent infliction of emotional distress against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bernard Schmitt and Bishop Michael Bransfield (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.  

A jury trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT FOURTEEN
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
143. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

144. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese, through their agents and/or employees were on notice of the various allegations and complaints concerning immoral and illegal sexual misconduct committed by Father McCallister and other Diocese priests, and deliberately decided to take no affirmative action to protect children in harm(s way.  
145. The acts and omissions of the Diocesan Defendants as pled herein above, represent conduct which was intentional, willful, outrageous, reckless and deliberately indifferent to the health, safety and welfare of minor parishioners of the Diocese in general, and the Plaintiff in particular.

146. Upon learning of the intentional and outrageous conduct of the Diocesan Defendants as set forth above, Plaintiff experienced emotional distress and suffered damages as set forth in Paragraph 75 above.  


WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages for intentional infliction of emotional distress against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bernard Schmitt and Bishop Michael Bransfield (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.  

A jury trial is hereby demanded. 

COUNT FIFTEEN
JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS

PUNITIVE DAMAGES

147. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

148. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese, through their agents, and/or employees were on notice of the various allegations and complaints concerning immoral and illegal sexual misconduct committed by   Father McCallister and other Diocese priests, and deliberately decided to take no affirmative action to protect children in harm(s way.
149. The acts and omissions of the Diocesan Defendants as pled herein above, represent conduct which was intentional, willful, outrageous, reckless and deliberately indifferent to the health, safety and welfare of minor parishioners of the Diocese in general, and the Plaintiff in particular.
150. As a proximate and direct result of the aforesaid outrageous conduct of the Diocesan Defendants, Plaintiff sustained the injuries as more fully described above.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages and punitive damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Bernard Schmitt and Bishop Michael Bransfield (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants), in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT SIXTEEN

JOHN DOE I v. DIOCESAN DEFENDANTS AND BARBARA JANE ARBOGAST,
EXECUTRIX OF THE ESTATE OF CHARLES E. McCALLISTER, DECEASED

PERSONS ACTING IN CONCERT
151. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

152. As set forth herein above, the Diocesan Defendants acted in concert with Father McCallister in a plan to conceal his propensity to abuse minor parishioners.

153. At all times material, the Diocesan Defendants knew (or had constructive knowledge) that Father McCallister (s conduct constituted a breach of duty and was harmful, yet the Diocese Defendants assisted and encouraged Father McCallister to maintain his activities as a priest, including working directly with children, by assigning him to serve at parishes and/or schools, and encouraging him to conceal his pedophiliac propensities by their actions.

154. Said actions by Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese in assisting and encouraging known pedophiles to continue working with and maintaining unlimited access to minor parishioners/students, was a substantial factor in assisting Father McCallister to commit acts of sexual abuse on minors, including the Plaintiffs.

155. Bishops Schmitt and Bransfield and the Diocese(s actions in assisting and encouraging Father McCallister to deceive parishioners into believing that they were priests in good standing with the Diocese, rather than the recidivist pedophile they knew or should have known Father McCallister to be, was a substantial factor in causing the Plaintiff(s harm.

156. As a result of the Diocesan Defendants( actions, Plaintiff sustained injuries as enumerated hereinbefore.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against the Diocese of Wheeling-Charleston, Bishop Michael Bransfield and Bishop Bernard Schmitt (collectively referred to as Diocesan Defendants) and Barbara Jane Arbogast, Executrix of the Estate of Charles E. McCallister, in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law and costs.

A Jury Trial is hereby demanded.

COUNT SEVENTEEN

JOHN DOE I v. BARBARA JANE ARBOGAST, EXECUTRIX OF
THE ESTATE OF CHARLES E. McCALLISTER, DECEASED

ASSAULT AND BATTERY
157. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

158. As a result of his affiliation with Immaculate Conception Church and the Wheeling-Charleston Diocese, McCallister was able to develop a close personal relationship with plaintiff and use this relationship to initiate an abusive sexual relationship with plaintiff.
159. As set forth herein, beginning in 2003, McCallister did unlawfully, knowingly and intentionally, with reckless indifference to the harm to the harm to plaintiff, commit multiple acts of physical, sexual, psychological, emotional and mental abuse upon plaintiff.

160. As a direct, proximate and foreseeable result of McCallister’s actions, plaintiff has been damaged psychologically, physically and emotionally, as set forth more fully in Paragraph 68 herein.


WHEREFORE, plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against Barbara Jane Arbogast, Executrix of the Estate of Charles E. McCallister, deceased, in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest, as allowed by law, and costs.  

A jury trial is demanded.

COUNT EIGHTEEN

JOHN DOE I v. BARBARA JANE ARBOGAST, EXECUTRIX OF

THE ESTATE OF CHARLES E. McCALLISTER, DECEASED 

BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

161. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

162. McCallister was entrusted with the well-being, care and safety of the minor plaintiff, as a result of his status as a parishioner at the Diocese parish.  Under his fiduciary duty, McCallister assumed a duty to act in the best interest of the plaintiff.

163. Plaintiff considered and believed McCallister was acting as an agent or representative of God.  As a parishioner, student and altar boy, plaintiff was taught to put his trust and faith in priests.  As a result, there was justifiable trust on plaintiff’s part and a resulting superiority and influence on the part of Diocesan priests, including McCallister.
164. McCallister gained the confidence of plaintiff and purported to act to in plaintiff’s best interest in providing plaintiff with religious instructions, training, spiritual guidance and counseling.  As such, there existed a fiduciary relationship of trust, confidence and reliance between plaintiff and McCallister.

165. McCallister also had a secular fiduciary relationship with plaintiff grounded upon the duty of good faith, fair dealing and the duty to act with the highest degree of trust and confidence.  The fiduciary duty included the duty of McCallister to refrain from sexual abuse and exploitation of plaintiff.

166. McCallister breached his fiduciary duties through his repeated acts of physical sexual abuse upon plaintiff, as set forth above.


WHEREFORE, plaintiff seeks compensatory damages against Barbara Jane Arbogast, Executrix of the Estate of Charles E. McCallister, deceased, in an amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration, plus interest as allowed by law, and costs.


A jury trial is demanded.

COUNT NINETEEN

JOHN DOE I v. BARBARA JANE ARBOGAST, EXECUTRIX OF THE ESTATE
OF CHARLES E. McCALLISTER, DECEASED

INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
167. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

168. The acts and omissions of McCallister as pled hereinabove represent conduct which was intentional, willful, outrageous, reckless and deliberately indifferent to the health and welfare of plaintiff.
169. As a result of the repeated acts of sexual abuse by McCallister, plaintiff experienced emotional distress and suffered damages as set forth in Paragraph 68 above.

COUNT TWENTY
JOHN DOE I v. BARBARA JANE ARBOGAST, EXECUTRIX OF THE ESTATE

OF CHARLES E. McCALLISTER, DECEASED

PUNITIVE DAMAGES

170. Paragraphs One (1) through Sixty-Eight (68) are incorporated herein by this reference thereto.

171. McCallister’s repeated acts of physical sexual abuse of plaintiff, as pled hereinabove, represent conduct which was intentional, willful, outrageous, reckless and deliberately indifferent to the health, safety, and welfare of plaintiff.

172. As a proximate and direct result of the aforesaid outrageous conduct of McCallister, plaintiff sustained the injuries and damages plead hereinabove.


WHEREFORE, plaintiff seeks punitive damages against Barbara Jane Arbogast, Executrix of the Estate of Charles E. McCallister, deceased, in amount in excess of the jurisdictional limits requiring arbitration plus interest as allowed by law and costs.


A jury trial is hereby demanded.
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